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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT |
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CaseNo.____ __CIv. S L MM

DEPUTY CLERK

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, -
Plaintiff,
Y.

K4 GLOBAL PUBLISH]NG, INC,,
dba
Instant Internet Empu'es, :
| L :0 3-tv- -3
KERN FAMILY ENTERPRISES, LLC, 5:03-4+-0140
dba
Instant Internet Empires,

and
IRWIN F. KERN, IV,
aka
Frank Kern

- Defendants.

. COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or “Commission”), for its complaint

alleges:

1. The FTC brings this action under Section 13(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act

(“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b), to'obtain preliminary and permanent injunctive relief,



_ »res't:itution, ciisgergement and ‘o'the-r equitable relief for Defendanfs" deceptive acts or practices in
7‘ v1olat10n of Section 5(a) of the FIC Act, 1S US.C. § 45(a). T
J'URISDICTION AND VENUE
S 2 Subject matter jurisdiction is'conferred upon this Court by 15 USC §§ 45(2) and
. 53(b) and 28 U S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), and 1345. | |
3. Venue in thls d1str1ct is proper under 15U. S. C.§ 53(b) and 28 U. S C §§ 1391(b)
amd©). - |
DEFENDANTS -~
4. Defendant K4 Global Publishing, Inc. (“K4”) is a North’(.?arolina eorporatidn with its 11/
office and principal Iplace of busrness located in Maeon, Georgia. K4 transacts or has transacted
’ business in the Middle District of Georgia and throughout the United States under its own neme
and using fictitious names, including but not limited to Instant Internet Empires.
5. Kern Family Enterprises, LLC (“KFE”) is a Georgia corporation with its office and
principal place of business ioeated in Macori, Georgia. KFE transacts or has transacted business
. in.the Middle;_ Districf of Georgia and throughout the ’United‘States under its own name and using
ﬁcﬁtioﬁs names; including but not limited to Instant Internet Ernpires.
6. Defendant Irwin F. Kern, IV is the presiderrt of K4. He resides in Macon, Georgia. At
‘all times material to this complaint, acting alone or in conjunction with others, he has formulated,
directed, controlled, or participated in the acts and practices alleged in this complaint. He
transacts or hae transacted business in the iVﬁddle District of Georgia and throughout the United

States.

7. K4, KFE, and Kern operate as a common enterprise to induce consumers to purchase



the right to r;:prodﬁce and reseil thc—::ir marketiﬁg 'websites. ‘
- " COMMERCE
8. Atall times mateﬁal to this corﬁplaint, Defendants'_ course of business, including fhe _
acts and practices aileggd héréin, Ihas been énd is in or affecting commercé, as “éommercé’5 is
deﬁn_éd in Section 4 of the FFC Act,15US.C. § 44
| DEFENDANTS' COURSE OF CONDUCT

9. Defendants sell consumers a pre-packaged Internet business. The business consists of

e .

 the right to reproduce Defendants’ own marketing website, known as “Instant Internet Empires,”

and resell its content to other consumers.

10. Defendants prbmote “Instant Internet Empires” through a variety of advertising,
" including spam solicitations, web pages on the Internet, and Internet search engines.

11. In their advertising, Defendants repres;ent, expressly or by implication, that
purchasers of the “Instant Internet Empires” product are likely to earn substantial income using
the product. For instance, the Defendants’ marketing website states, in part:

| My unprofessional little home made web site brought in $115,467 21 last year and
you’ré about to discover how you can do the same . . .
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Rock Solid Proof. Here itis. .. a copy of my bank statement showing my daily

deposits totalling over $4.559.13 for the last week in February. Now I want
you to know this was NOT a normal week. It’s usually around $1,400.00 to
$2,100.00. February just happened to end with a BANG! And the last few

months have been just as good!

* ok K ko

The Cash Flow System That Brought In Over $115,467.00 In The First Year.
My Internet Business brought in over $115.467.21 last year and I'm going to show

i } e

a



you exactly how you can do the same thing. -
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Bask in the respect and admiration (and da;e I say envj) of family and fricnds as
. they see you making big money “while you sleep” as an Internet entrepreneur!

'(émph'asis in the originai).
| 12. In reaﬁty, the majority of pmcﬁasem of the “Instant ,Iritemet Empires” product cannot,
and do not, eam. a substantiél‘ incofne using the product; in fact, most purchasers will not xhake :
money. = |

13. Consumérs who wish to buy the “Instant Internéf Empires” pi'oduct are linked by fhe
payment butfon oﬁ Defendants’ website to Defendants’ online payi'nent processor. Consumers
who make the required payment to the processor are then dirg’cted back to one of Defendants’
websites where they can download the mateﬁals that comprise the “Instant Internet Empires”
pfoduct.

14. The materials comprising the “Ir.1§tant Internet Empires” product include copies of the
Defendants’ own marketing website and all information contained therein as well as vjdeo files
tha_t instruct :fconsumer how to reproduce the website and post it as the consumer’s own webSite.
The video instructions advise a pﬁrchasing consumer to contract with a web-hosting company to
‘host the consumer’s site and with an online payment processor to accept payment for the product
from other consumers. Defendants’ video instructions direct a c%onsumer to create his or her own
marketing website with text identical to that in Defendants’ marketing website, including the use
of Defendant Kern’s name and signature, as well as a reproduction of his bank statement.

15. Defendants’ scheme is a chain marketing scheme that necessarily enriches only a few



 initial partlc;pants at the expense of the majenty of other part101pants The success of any
'partlmpant in achlevmg earning cIalms in a chain marketlng scheme is dependent upon the
participant’s ability to convmce a large number of new part1c1pants to buy into the scheme.

| 16. ‘_lThe structufe of 5 ehain.marketing scheme places severe limitations upon the success
Qf its participants. Participehts can only make money if they recruit new parﬁeipahts into the
seheme, ensuring that at each step ih the evolution of the scheme the majority of participants will
ot make money. - |

17 The result of the structure and operatlon of Defen&;hts prhgram is that ﬁnanc1a1
gains to participants are primarily dependent upon the successive recruitment of other s
participants.

18. Defendants have provided participants in the Instant Internet Empires prografn with
marketing websites that include the representatibns in Paragraph 11 for use in recruiting new
participants and inducing them to participate in the Instant Internet Empires program.

VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE FTC ACT

19. Sgcﬁon 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U..S.C. § 45(a), prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or
Practices in or affecting commerce.

" Count One

20. In the course of advertising their products, Defendants represent, expressly or by
implication, that consumers who purchase Defendants’ products are likely to earn substantial
income from those products.

21. Intruth and in fact many consumers who purchase Defendants ' products are not

likely to earn substantial income from those products.



22. Defendants’ representatlons as set forth 1n Paragraph 20 therefore, are false and

deceptive i in violation of Sectron 5(a) of the FTC Act 15 U S. C § 45(a)
Count Two |

2 23. In the course of adverusmg their products, Defendants represent, expressly or by
' 1mphcat10n, that all consumers who purchase the products can earn a substant1a1 income from
those products.

24. Defendants faxl to disclose that the nature of Defendants’ products and the nature of
their marketmg structure ensure that many purchasers will not eam a substantial income from
those products. . | ‘ : Lo

25. This additional information, described in Paragraph 24, Awould be material to
consumers in deciding whether to purchase Defendants’ products.

26. Defendants’ failure to disclose the material information described in Paragraph 24, in
light'of the representations described in Paragraph 23, constitutes a deceptive act and practice in
violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15U.S.C. § 45(a).

Count Three

)
&

27. As alleged above, Defendants solicit payments from consurmers by pronﬁsing them
financial gains based on payments from future participants in the scheme.

28. A consumer’s ability to achieve those financial gains' is primarily dependent upon his
or her successive recruitment of other participants into the scheme. |

29. The structure of Defendants’ scheme ensures that a majority of participants in the
, scheme will be unable to achieve those financial gains.

30. This type of scheme, known as a chain marketing scheme, is a deceptive act or



practice in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 .U.S_.C. §45().
| Count Four o
31. Defendanes provide perticipants in Ithé pregraxﬁ with eopies of their website
advertisement to be used in reenﬁﬁng new participants. As deseribed in Counts One and Two,
the website contains fa_lse and misleadirig _repreSeiitations.
32.. By providjhg participants with the website advertisement, Defendants have provi_ded

others with the meahs and instrumentalities for the commission of deceptive acts and practices.

. -_r‘

33, Therefore Defendants practlces, as descnbed in Paragraph 31 constitute deceptxve '

acts and practices in violation of 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).
" CONSUMER INJURY

34. Consumers throughout the United States have suffered monetary losses and other

injury as a result of Defendants' unlawful acts or practices. Absent injunctive relief by this Court,

Defendants are likely to eontinue to injure consumers and harm the public interest.
THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF

35. Under Section 13(b) of the PTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), this Court is authonzed to
issue a permanent injunction against Defendants violating the FTC Act as well as such ancﬂlary
relief as rescission of contracts, restitution, disgorgement of ill-gotten gains, and the refund of
’monies paid to redress the injury to consumers or others resulting from Defendants’ violations of
Section 5 of the FTC Act.

36. This Court, in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, may award other ancillary

relief to remedy injury caused by Defendants' law violations.



WHEREFORE, 'Plaintiff, the Federal T_rade C,ommission,' requests that this Court, as

authorized by Sections '13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. §§ 53@), and pursuant to its own

| equitable powers:

¢)) AWard Pleintiff such p_felimihary injunctive a;rid ether_ anciilary relief as may be
necessary to avert the erlihood of further consumer injury during the pendency of this
action and to preserve the poss1b111ty of effective final rehef

“(2) Permanently enJom Defendants from v101at1ng Segt‘1‘0n 5of the FTC Act;
(3) Enter judgment against Defendants and in favor of Plaintiff for each violation alleged
in this complainbt;'
(4) Award Plaintiff such relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to
consumers or others resulting from Defendants’ violations of Section 5 of the FTC Act,
including,'but pot limited to, rescission of contracts, resti;ution, disgorgement of
ill-gotten gains, and the refund of moénies paid; and

(5) Award Plaintiff such additional relief as the Court may deem just and proper.



- Respectfully. éubmitted

oy 42002

WILLIAM E. KOVACIC
| General Counsel

/% /6 /%//W_

' ROBERT G. SCHOSHINSKI

~ Attorney
Federal Trade Commission

RoomH-238 .. . | .

600 Pennsylvania Ave. NW
‘Washington, DC 20580

- Telephone: (202) 326-3219
Facsimile: (202) 326-3395
E-Mail: rschoshinski @ftc.gov



